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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

JOHN SONES, an individual, on behalf of
himself, and on behalf of all persons similarly
situated,

Plaintiffs,
V.

DOWNEY SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSN,
F.A.. and Does 1 10 10,

Defendants.

CASE No. 37-2008-00085515-CU-BT-CTL

FIRST AMENDED CLASS AND
COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLAINT
FOR:

1. FAILURE TO PAY COMPENSATION IN
VIOLATION OF 29 U.S.C. § 201, ef seq.;

2. FAILURE TO PAY WAGES IN
VIOLATION OF CAL. LAB. CODE §§ 510,
515, 551,552, 1182, 1194, 1197 AND 1198,
el seq.;

3. FAILURE TO PROVIDE WAGES WHEN
DUE IN VIOLATION OF CAL. LAB. CODE
§ 203;

4. FAILURE TO PROVIDE ACCURATE
ITEMIZED STATEMENTS IN VIOLATION
OF CAL. LAB. CODE § 226;

5. FAILURE TO PROVIDE MEAL AND
REST PERIODS IN VIOLATION OF CAL.
LAB. CODE § 226.7 AND 512;

6. FAILURE TO INDEMNIFY IN
VIOLATION OF CAL. LAB. CODE $ 2802;
and.

7. UNFAIR COMPETITION IN
VIOLATION OF CAL. BUS. & PROF.
CODE § 17200, e seq.

DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL
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Plaintiff John Sones alleges on information and belief, except for his own acts and

knowledge, the following:

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. Plaintiff John Sones (“PLAINTIFF") brings this class action on behalf of
himself and a California class consisting of all individuals who are or previously were employed by
Defendant Downey Savings and Loan Assn, F.A. and/or Does 1 to 10, (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “DEFENDANTS™) as loan officers in California during the Class Period as hereinafter
defined (the “CLASS™).

2. Individuals in this position of loan officer with DEFENDANTS are and were
employees entitled to be classified as non-exempt, entitled to be paid at least minimum wage,
entitled to regular and overtime compensation, entitled to be provided with meal and rest breaks,
entitled to reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses spent in discharge of services for the
employer’s benefit, and entitled to prompt payment of all amounts due and unpaid owing upon
leaving employment.

3. Although DEFENDANTS require their employees employed as loan officers to work
more than eight (8) hours a day, more than forty (40) hours a week, and work hours on the seventh
(7"") consecutive day of a work week, as a matter of policy and practice, DEFENDANTS
consistently and uniformly failed to properly classify these employees, and through such practice,
failed to record and pay such employees for hours worked, denying them the compeﬁsation that the
law requires.

4, PLAINTIFF, on behalf of himself and the CLASS of loan officers similarly situated,
seeks to have all such employees reclassified and recover all the compensation that DEFENDANTS
were required by law to provide, but failed to provide, to PLAINTIFF and all other CLASS
members, including but not limited to minimum wage for hours worked, regular and overtime
compensation for hours worked, compensation for missed meal and rest breaks. reimbursement for
out of pocket expenses, compensation for amounts not paid upon leaving employment and such

other and further compensation. penalties. and interest as shall be determined.

1
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code §
410.10. The action is brought pursuant to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 382, Cal. Civ. Code § 1781 ef seq.
PLAINTIFF brings this action on their own behalf, and on behalf of all persons within the Class as
hereinafter defined.

6. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code §§ 395 and 395.5
because the DEFENDANTS have and at all relevant times maintained their offices in San Diego

County, California and committed the wrongful conduct against members of the class in San Diego

County, California.

PARTIES
7. Plaintiff John Sones was employed by DEFENDANTS from on or about November
6, 2007 to February 5, 2008, in the state of California.
8. DEFENDANTS conducted and continue to conduct substantial and regular business
in San Diego County, California, and throughout California. DEFENDANTS also conduct business
throughout the United States and are an enterprise engaged in commerce within the meaning of the

Fair Labor Standards Act by regularly and recurrently receiving or transmitting interstate

comimunications.

9, The Defendants named in this Complaint, and Does 1 through 10, inclusive, are, and
at all times mentioned herein were, the agents, servants, and/or employees of each of the other
Defendant and each Defendant was acting within the course of scope of his, her or its authority as
the agent, servant and/or employee of each of the other Defendant. Consequently, all the
DEFENDANTS are jointly and severally liable to the PLAINTIFF and the other members of the

CLASS, for the losses sustained as a proximate result of DEFENDANTS® conduct.

COLLECTIVE ACTION UNDER THE FLSA

10. PLAINTIFF brings this lawsuit as a collective action under the Fair Labor and
Standards Act. 29 U.S.C. § 201, ef seq. (the “FL.SA™), on behalf of all persons who were, are, or will
be employed by DEFENDANTS in California as loan officers or in other substantially similar
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positions, at any time within the applicable statute of limitations period (the “COLLECTIVE
CLASS PERIOD), who have been misclassified as exempt from compensation for all hours
worked (the “COLLECTIVE CLASS™). To the extent equitable tolling operates to toll claims by
the COLLECTIVE CLASS against the DEFENDANTS, the COLLECTIVE CLASS PERIOD
should be adjusted accordingly. The COLLECTIVE CLASS includes all such persons, whether or
not they were paid by commission, by salary, or by part commission and part salary.

1. Questions of law and fact common to the COLLECTIVE CLASS as a whole, but not
limited to the following, include:

a. Whether DEFENDANTS misclassified PLAINTIFF and members of the
COLLECTIVE CLASS as exempt from receiving compensation for all hours
worked, including federal minimum wage compensation and overtime compensation;

b. Whether DEFENDANTS failed to adequately compensate the members
of the COLLECTIVE CLASS for all hours worked as required by the FLSA,
including the time worked through their meal periods;

c. Whether DEFENDANTS should be enjoined from continuing the practices which
violate the FLLSA; and,

d. Whether DEFENDANTS are liable to the COLLECTIVE CLASS.

12. 'The first cause of action for the violations of the FLSA may be brought and
maintained as an “opt-in” collective action pursuant to Section 16(b) of FLSA, 29 U.S.C. 216(b), for
all claims asserted by the representative PLAINTIFF of the COLLECTIVE CLASS because the
claims of the PLAINTIFF are similar to the claims of the members of the prospective
COLLECTIVE CLASS.

13, PLAINTIFF John Sones and the COLLECTIVE CLASS are similarly situated,
have substantially similar job requirements and pay provisions, and are subject to DEFENDANTS®
common and uniform policy and practice of misclassifying their employees, failing to pay for all
actual time worked and wages earned, and failing to accurately record all hours worked by these
employees in violation of the FI.SA and the Regulations implementing the Act as enacted by the
Secretary of Labor (the “REGULATIONS™).

4
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CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

14. PLAINTIFF John Sones brings this action on behalf of himself in his individual
capacity and also on behalf of a California Class of all employees of DEFENDANTS in California
who were, are, or will be employed as loan officers or in other substantially similar positions, who
were misclassified as exempt from receiving compensation for all hours worked during the period
commencing on the date four years prior to the filing of this complaint and ending on the class
period cutoff date (the “CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD™). This class is hereinafier referred to as
the “CALIFORNIA CLASS.” The CALIFORNIA CLASS includes all such persons, whether or not
they were paid by commission, by salary, or by part commission and part salary.

15. DEFENDANTS, as a matter of corporate policy, practice and procedure, and in
violation of the applicable California Labor Code (“Labor Code™) and Industrial Welfare
Commission (“IWC”) Wage Order Requirements intentionally, knowingly, and systematically
misclassified the PLAINTIFF and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS as exempt from
receiving compensation for all hours worked and other labor laws in order to avoid the payment of
wages due for hours worked by misclassifying their positions as commissioned sales employees. To
the extent equitable tolling operates to toll claims by the CALIFORNIA CLASS against
DEFENDANTS, the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD should be adjusted accordingly.

16. DEFENDANTS violated the rights of the CALIFORNIA CLASS under California
law by:

(a) Committing an act of unfair competition in violation of the California Labor
Code, by failing to pay PLAINTIFF and the members of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS all wages and compensation due for all hours worked in a work
week.

(b) Violating California law, including Cal. Labor Code § 204, by failing to pay
PLAINTIFF and the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS pay for all work
hours for which DEFENDANTS are liable pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code §

1194,
(c) Violating Cal. Lab. Code §§ 1194 and 1197. the California Wage Order 4-

5
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(e)

(f)

(h)

2001 (the “Wage Order™), California Code of Regulations § 1 1040(4), and
the applicable California Minimum Wage Orders by failing to pay
PLAINTIFF and the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS at least the
applicable minimum wage rate for each year of the CALIFORNIA CLASS
PERIOD.

Violating the Wage Order and California Code of Regulations § 11040 by
misclassifying PLAINTIFF and the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS as
exempt commissioned sales persons and failing to provide overtime
compensation for all hours worked excess of eight (8) hours in a day, forty
(40) in a week, or for hours worked on the seventh (7*) consecutive workday
day.

Violating Cal. Lab. Code § 203, which provides that when an employee is
discharged or quits from employment, the employer must pay the employee
all wages due without abatement, by failing to tender full payment and/or
restitution of wages owed or in the manner required by California law to the
PLAINTIFF and the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS who have
terminated their employment. Thus, DEFENDANTS are liable for such
wages for a period of thirty (30) days following the termination of such
employment.

Violating Cal. Lab. Code § 226, by failing to provide PLAINTIFF and the
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with an accurate itemized statement
in writing showing the total hours worked by the employee.

Violating the Wage Order and California Code of Regulations § 11040,
subsection 7, by failing to maintain accurate records of time and hours
worked in the payroll period and failing to make such information available
to employees.

Violating Cal. Lab. Code §§ 1198 and 226.7 and the regulations and orders

implementing the Code. by failing to provide PLAINTIFF and the members
6

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT




A W

~ O\ A

(1)

of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with meal periods and are thus liable for
premium pay of one hour for each workday such meal periods were denied.
Violating Cal. Lab. Code § 2802 by failing to indemnify and reimburse
PLAINTIFF, and all the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS for all

expenses incurred in direct consequence of the discharge of their duties

17. This Class Action meets the statutory prerequisites for the maintenance of a Class

Action as set forth in California Code of Civil Procedure § 382, in that:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The persons who comprise the CALIFORNIA CLASS are so numerous that
the joinder of all such persons is impracticable and the disposition of their
claims as a class will benefit the parties and the Court;

Nearly all factual, legal, statutory, declaratory and injunctive relief issues that
are raised in this Complaint are common to the CALIFORNIA CLASS and
will apply uniformly to every member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS;

The claims of the representative PLAINTIFF are typical of the claims of each
member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS. PLAINTIFF, like ail other members
of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, was systematically misclassified as exempt
from receiving compensation for all hours worked and sustained economic
injuries arising from DEFENDANTS® violations of the laws of California.
PLAINTIFF and the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are similarly or
identically harmed by the same unlawful, deceptive, unfair and pervasive
pattern of misconduct engaged in by the DEFENDANTS of systematically
misclassifying as exempt all loan officers from receiving compensation for all
hours worked.

The representative PLAINTIFF will fairly and adequately represent and
protect the interest of the CALIFORNIA CLASS. and has retained counsel
who are competent and experienced in Class Action liti gation. There arc no
material conflicts between the claims of the representative PLAINTIFF and

the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS that would make class
7
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certification inappropriate. Counsel for the CALIFORNIA CLASS will

vigorously assert the claims of all Class Members.

18. In addition to meeting the statutory prerequisites to a Class Action, this action is

properly maintained as a Class Action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civil Procedure § 382, in that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Without class certification and determination of declaratory, injunctive,

statutory and other legal questions within the class format, prosecution of

separate actions by individual members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS will
create the risk of:

1) Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS which would establish
incompatible standards of conduct for the parties opposing the
CALIFORNIA CLASS; or,

2) Adjudication with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS which would as a practical matter be
dispositive of interests of the other members not party to the
adjudication or substantially impair or impede their ability to protect
their interests.

The parties opposing the CALIFORNIA CLASS have acted on grounds

generally applicable to the CALIFORNIA CLASS, making appropriate class-

wide relief with respect to the CALIFORNIA CLASS as a whole in that the

DEFENDANTS systematically misclassified all loan officers as exempt from

receiving compensation for all hours worked:;

Common questions of law and fact exist as to the members of the

CALIFORNIA CLASS and predominate over any question affecting only

individual members, and a Class Action is superior to other available

methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of the controversy, including

consideration of*

1) The interests of the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS in
8
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individually controlling the prosecution or defense of separate actions;

2} The extent and nature of any litigation concerning the controversy
already commenced by or against members of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS;

3) The desirability or undesirability of concentrating the litigation of the
claims in the particular forum;

4} The difficulties likely to be encountered in the management of a Class
Action; and,

b)) The basis of DEFENDANTS misclassifying PLAINTIFF and the
CALIFORNIA CLASS as exempt from receiving overtime

compensation,

19. This Court should permit this action to be maintained as a Class Action pursuant to

California Code of Civil Procedure § 382 because:

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

The questions of law and fact common to the CALIFORNIA CLASS
predominate over any question affecting only individual members;

A Class Action is superior to any other available method for the fair and
efficient adjudication of the claims of the members of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS;

The members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are so numerous that it is
impractical to bring all members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS before the
Court;

PLAINTIFF, and the other CALIFORNIA CLASS members, will not be able
to obtain effective and economic legal redress unless the action is maintained
as a Class Action;

There is a community of interest in obtaining appropriate legal and equitable
relief for the common law and statutory violations and other improprieties.
and in obtaining adequate compensation for the damages and injuries which

DEFENDANTS” actions have inflicted upon the CALIFORNIA CLASS:
9

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT




)

L B N VS ]

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

20.

¢y

(2)

()

There is a community of interest in ensuring that the combined assets and
available insurance of DEFENDANTS are sufficient to adequately
compensate thanembers of the CALIFORNIA CLASS for the injuries
sustained;

DEFENDANTS have acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable
to the CALIFORNIA CLASS, thereby making final class-wide relief
appropriate with respect to the CALIFORNIA CLASS as a whole; and

The members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are readily ascertainable from the
business records of the DEFENDANTS. The CALIFORNIA CLASS
consists of all of DEFENDANTS® employees employed as loan officers in
California who were classified as exempt from receiving wages for all hours
worked. DEFENDANTS, as a matter of law, has the burden of proving the
basis for the exemption as to each and every loan officer so classified. To the
extent that DEFENDANTS have failed to maintain records sufficient to
establish the basis for the exemption (including but not limited to, the
employee’s job duties, wages, and hours worked) for any loan officer,
DEFENDANTS are estopped, as a matter of law, to assert the existence of

the exemption.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

DEFENDANTS, as a matter of corporate policy, practice and procedure, and in

violation of the applicable California Labor Code (*Labor Code™), Industrial Welfare Commission

("IWC") Wage Order Requirements, and the applicable provisions of the FLSA, intentionally,

knowingly, and wilfully, on the basis of job title alone and without regard to the actual overall

requirements of the job or compensation paid, systematically misclassitied the PLAINTIFF and the

other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS and the COLLECTIVE CLASS (the “CI.ASS™) as

exempt from receiving wages for all hours worked. This practice of DEFENDANTS was intended

to purposefully avoid the payment of eared wages by misclassifving the PLAINTIFF and other loan

10

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

officers similarly situated as exempt, commissioned sales people, regardless of whether wages
should have been paid and regardless of whether actual “commissions™ were in fact paid to the
CLASS. To the extent equitable tolling operates to toll claims by the CLLASS against
DEFENDANTS, the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD and the COLLECTIVE CLASS PERIOD (the
“CLASS PERIODS™) should be adjusted accordingly.

21. DEFENDANTS have intentionally and deliberately created numerous Job levels and
a multitude of job titles to create the superficial appearance of hundreds of unique jobs, when in
fact, these jobs are substantially simiiar and can be easily grouped together for the purpose of
determining whether they are entitled to wages for hours worked and whether DEFENDANTS were
required to maintain accurate time and hour records. Indeed, one of DEFENDANTS’ purposes in
creating and maintaining this multi-level job classification scheme is to create a roadblock to
discovery and class certification for all employees similarly misclassified as exempt.
DEFENDANTS have uniformly misclassified these CL.ASS members as exempt and denied them
wages and other benefits to which they are entitled in order to unfairly cheat the competition and
untawfully profit.

22, DEFENDANTS maintain records from which the Court can ascertain and identity
each of DEFENDANTS’ employees who as CLASS members, have been systematically,
intentionally and uniformly misclassified as exempt from receiving wages for all hours worked as a
matter of DEFENDANTS” corporate policy, practice and procedure. To the extent DEFENDANTS’
have assigned job titles other than *loan officer™ to employees subjected to the practices herein
alleged, PLAINTIFF will seck leave to amend the complaint to include any additional job titles
when they have been identified.

23. DEFENDANTS have intentionally and deliberately created a variety of pay
structures to create the superficial appearance of unique payment plans, when in fact, these payment
plans were all effectuated and applied across the board to all employees at certain times during the
CLASS PERIOD. One of DEFENDANTS’ purposes in creating and maintaining different payment
schemes throughout the CLASS PERIOD is to create a roadblock to discovery and class

certitication for all employces similarly misclassified as exempt. PLAINTIFF and the other
11
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members of the CLASS were all similarly subjected 1o each payment plan when such plans were put
in place by DEFENDANTS. These employees can be easily grouped together for the purpose of
analyzing whether each payment plan deprived the PLAINTIFF and members of the CLASS of
wages and rights to which these employees were entitled receive because DEFENDANTS uniformly
subjected PLAINTIFF and the CLASS members to each payment plan, for each period that each
plan was in effect, thereby denying PLAINTIFF and the members of the CLASS wages and rights to
which they are entitled, in order to unfairly cheat the competition and unlawfully profit.

24. DEFENDANTS maintain records from which the Court can ascertain and identify
cach of DEFENDANTS’ pay structures that systematicaily, intentionally and uniformly deprived
PLAINTIFF and the members of the CLASS from receiving wages for all hours worked as a matter
of DEFENDANTS?’ corporate policy, practice and procedure. PLAINTIFF will seek leave to
amend the complaint (o detail these pay structures, whether such pay structures were comprised of

pay by commission, by salary, or by part commission and part salary.

THE CONDUCT

25. PLAINTIFF John Sones was hired by DEFENDANTS and placed
into the job title of “loan officer,” in one of DEFENDANTS’ offices in the state of California. The
Job title was described to the PLAINTIFF as a full-time position, wherein the performance of certain
duties would entitle PLAINTIFF to commissions. PLAINTIFF functioned as a working member on
the production side of the mortgage business for DEFENDANTS. The job duties of PLAINTIFF
and the other members of the CLASS are to deliver loan applications, market DEFENDANTS’
loans according to established procedures, prepare loan documentation and applications, write Joans
according to DEFENDANTS guidelines, process DEFENDANTS® mailers, and make calls from
DEFENDANTS’ offices. A mortgage loan is the product that DEFENDANTS deliver to the
customers. The PLAINTIFF and other members of the CLLASS prepare loan documentation and
applications for submission based on rigidly defined parameters established by DEFENDANTS.
Effectively. the members of the CLASS act simply as clerks, delivering loan applications and

preparing the loan applications based upon DEFENDANTS’ criteria so as to qualify the product as a
12
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loan. In delivering and preparing loan applications, the members of the CLASS are endowed with
no authority to change any of DEFENDANTS’ product criteria. Like any clerk, the members of the
CLASS can only follow the criteria established by the DEFENDANTS in a routine. automatic
manner that is devoid of any independent judgment or discretion. In addition, as part of his
employment with DEFENDANTS, PLAINTIFF was required to use his cell-phone and automobile
to conduct business. DEFENDANTS, however, refused to reimburse PLAINTIFF for the cell-
phone expense and automobile expense expended in direct consequence of the discharge of
PLAINTIFF’S duties for DEFENDANTS.

26, In performing the conduct herein alleged, the DEFENDANTS uniformiy
misrepresented to the PLAINTIFF and the other members of the CLASS that they were exempt
from overtime and the applicable state and federal labor laws, when in fact, they were not. The
DEFENDANTS" wrongful conduct and violations of law as herein alleged demeaned and
wrongfully deprived PLAINTIFF and the other members of the CLASS of the career opportunities
to which they were lawfully entitled. DEFENDANTS engaged in such wrongful conduct by failing
to have adequate employment policies and maintaining adequate employment practices consistent
with such policies. DEFENDANTS wrongful conduct as herein alleged converted the money
belonging to the PLAINTIFF and the other members of the CLASS.

27. In performing these routine tasks for DEFENDANTS at DEFENDANTS® offices, the
members of the CLASS have worked and continue to work for DEFENDANTS without betng paid
the requisite minimum or overtime wages for all hours worked. As a result of these rigorous
demands, PLAINTIFF and other similarly situated employees were also often unable to take
uninterrupted meal and/or rest breaks due to the press of DEFENDANTS' business. During the
Class Period, PLAINTIFF, and the members of the CLLASS worked and/or still work on the
production side of the DEFENDANTS’ business, but are nevertheless misclassified as exempt.

28. Netther the PLAINTIFFE. nor any member of the CLASS. was primarily engaged in
work of a type that was or now is directly related to the DEFENDANTS? management policies or
general business operations. when giving these words a fair but narrow construction. Neither the

PLAINTIFF. nor any member of the CLLASS was primarily engaged in work of a tvpe that was or
13
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now is performed at the level of the policy or management of the DEFENDANTS. To the contrary,
the work of DEFENDANTS" loan officers is work wherein PLAINTIFF and the members of the
CLASS are primarily engaged in the day to day business operations of the DEFENDANTS, to
mechanicaily deliver completed toan applications in accordance with the established criteria of the
management policies and general business operations established by DEFENDANTS® management.
In this way, the work of PLAINTIFF and the members of the CLASS is focused solely on the
mechanical routine of obtaining and submitted the loan documentation pursuant 1o
DEFENDANTS’ established criteria. A loan officer’s work in obtaining and preparing loan
applications does not permit judgment or discretion that is independent, as this work is performed
according to DEFENDANTS” established criteria and procedures.

29.  Considerations such as (a}) DEFENDANTS’ realistic expectations for the job titled
loan officer, on the production side of the DEFENDANTS’ business enterprise, and (b) the actual
overall requirements of the job titled loan officer, are susceptible to commeon proof. The fact that
their work and those of other similarly situated employees involved, on occasion, a bonus or a draw
on commission does not mean that the PLAINTIFF and other members of the CLASS are exempt
from receiving minimum or overtime wages for all hours worked. The work that PLAINTIFF and
other members of the CLASS were and are primarily engaged in performing day to day activities is
the work that is required to be performed as part of the day to day business of DEFENDANTS of
obtaining and preparing loan applications. As a result, PLAINTIFF and the other members of the
CLASS were and still are primarily engaged in work that falls squarely on the production side of the
administrative/production worker dichotomy.

30. DEFENDANTS systematically misclassified as exempt PLAINTIFF and all other
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS and COLLECTIVE CLASS solely on the basis of their job
title and without regard to DEFENDANTS’ realistic expectations, the actual overall requirements of
the job. the hours worked or the pay received by the employee. Consequently, PLAINTIFF and the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS and COLLECTIVE CLASS were uniformly and
systematically exempted by DEFENDANTS from payment of wages due for hours worked during

the CLASS PERIOD. DEFENDANTS also had a written company policy whereby DEFENDANTS

4
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would reduce or eliminate an employee’s earned compensation at the DEFENDANTS® discretion, in
violation of Cal. Labor Code § 221, Cal. Code of Regulations, Title 8, § 11040, and the applicable
Wage Order.

3L Cal. Lab. Code § 515 appoints the Industrial Welfare Commission to establish
exemptions from the requirement that an overtime rate of compensation be paid pursuant to
Sections 510 and 511 for executive, administrative, and professional employees, provided that the
employee is primarily engaged in the duties that meet the test of the exemption, customarily and
regularly exercises discretion and independent Judgment in performing those duties, and earns a
monthly salary equivalent to no less than two times the state minimum wage for full-time
employment. California Labor Code § 515 and Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Order 4-2001
(the “Wage Order”) set forth the requirements which must be satisfied in order for an employee to
be lawfully classified as exempt from certain provisions of the Wage Order. Although wrongfully
classified by DEFENDANTS as exempt from certain requirements of the Wage Order at the time of
hire and thereafier, PLAINTIFF, and all other members of the similarly-situated CALIFORNIA
CLASS, are not exempt under Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Order 4-2001 (the “Wage
Order™), and Cal. Lab. Code § 515. ‘

32, Section 13 of the FLSA and 29 Code of Federal Regulations Part 541, ef seq., set
forth the requirements which must be satisfied in order for an employee to be lawfully classified as
exempt. Although wrongfully classified by DEFENDANTS as exempt at the time of hire and
thereafter, PLAINTIFF, and all other members of the similarly-situated COLLECTIVE CLASS, are
not exempt under section 13 of the FLSA or the provisions of 29 C.F.R. 541, er seq. Further,
DEFENDANTS are banks which do not qualify as “retail establishments™ pursuant to 29 C.F.R.
779.317, and therefore DEFENDANTS’ employees do not qualify for the exemption set forth in 29
U.5.C. § 207(i). DEFENDANTS’ conduct as herein alleged was willful and not in good faith, and
DEFENDANTS had no reasonable grounds for believing that the alleged conduct was not a
violation of the FLSA,

33.  Despite the fact that PLAINTIFE. and the other members of the CI.ASS. regularly

worked in excess of cight (8) hours a day and/or forty (40) hours per weck and/or on the seventh

15
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